Development
Review Board
Members
Duncan Brines
John Donaldson,
Chair

Gib Geiger
Steve McKenzie,
Vice-Chair
Rudy Polwin
James Tabor
Jonathan Ursprung

Planning & Zoning
Administrator/
E911 Coordinator
J.B. Weir

Town
Administrator
Annie Decker-
Dell’Isola

Town Clerk
Jennifer Peterson

Treasurer
Randy Brittingham

Waitsfield Town
Office

4144 Main Street
Waitsfield, VT
05673

(802) 496-2218

WAITSFIELD DEVELOPMENT REVIEW BOARD
MEETING AGENDA

Tuesday, March 12™, 2024 @ 7:00pm
Meeting to be held in-person and via Zoom

PUBLIC ACCESS TO THIS MEETING WILL BE AVAILABLE BOTH IN-PERSON
AT THE TOWN OFFICES OR REMOTE VIA ZOOM. TO PARTICIPATE
REMOTELY, PLEASE USE THE FOLLOWING LINK:
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/9190265312
Meeting ID: 919 026 5312
Or call: 1 929 205 6099

1. CALL TO ORDER
2. REVISIONS TO AGENDA, IF ANY
3. PUBLIC FORUM

4. ANNUAL REORGANIZATION

5. Application #4166-CU by John Morris off 9 VT Route 17, Waitsfield VT.
Applicant requests expansion of existing conditional use approval to operate a beer
garden on a mixed-use property consisting of a nursery, various outbuildings and,
in conjunction with its sister parcel, the future Mad River Valley Recreation Hub.
The parcel is parcel is identified as #99168.100 in the Irasville Village District.

6. APPROVAL OF MINUTES - February 27, 2024
7. ADJOURNMENT

8. DELIBERATIONS

Documents related to the above item(s) are
available for review in the Town Office, on the
town website, and via email. Reasonable
accommaodations shall be provided upon request to
ensure that the meeting is accessible to all
individuals regardless of disability. Please
contact the Planning & Zoning Office and at 496-
2218 x4 for more information.



https://us02web.zoom.us/j/9190265312

DEVELOPMENT REVIEW BOARD

STAFF REPORT by J.B. Weir for March 12, 2024 Meeting

Application #: 4166-CU

Land Owner: John Morris

Property Address: 9 VT Route 17

Parcel Number: 99168.100 in the Irasville Village District

Meeting Dates: March 12, 2024

Proposal/Type: Expansion of existing conditional use approval to
operate a beer garden on mixed-use properties
consisting of a brewery, vacant restaurant, apartments,
and an approved recreation hub.

GUIDING ORDINANCE and POLICY PROVISIONS

Town of Waitsfield Zoning Bylaws, as adopted March 2, 1971 and amended through
January 8, 2024

a. Table 2.03 Irasville Village District

b. Section3.09  Parking and Loading Standards

c. Section4.08  Mixed Uses

d. Section5.03  Conditional Use Review

Waitsfield Town Plan, as adopted on October 9, 2023.

. MATERIALS SUBMITTED

1. On February 11, 2024, the applicant submitted Conditional Use application # 4166-CU,
Zoning Permit application # 4166, Responses to General and Specific Review Standards,
and an aerial map of the subject properties.

2. On March 8, 2024, the PZA included in the file various site and parking plans from the
Mad River Valley Recreation Hub (VOREC) project submittal.

. PROPOSED FINDINGS OF FACT

1. The 3.7-acre property is located off 9 VT Route 17 and consists of a nursery
(Appalachian Landscaping), various outbuildings and the future Mad River Valley
Recreation Hub.


http://www.waitsfieldvt.us/wp-content/uploads/2020/10/ADOPTED-ZONING-BYLAWS-9.28.20.pdf
http://www.waitsfieldvt.us/wp-content/uploads/2017/12/Adopted-Town-Plan-2017-2025.pdf

. The subject property — along with its sister abutting parcel #99169.000 — has been
approved for the creation of the so-called Mad River Valley Recreation Hub. The new
proposed use is as a trailhead linking to existing trails on private land and the nearby
Howe Block of the Camel’s Hump State Forest. Parcel #99169.000 is already a mixed-
use property which consists of a currently-vacant restaurant/bar, brewery, retail, visitor’s
center, and 4 apartments.

. Applicant now proposes to expand the existing conditional use to operate a part/time
seasonal beer garden on parcel #99168.100 which would primarily serve users of the
recreation hub. Applicant proposes operation during the warmer months for a maximum
of 4 days/week and for 4-5 hours per day.

. Per applicant’s submittal, the only structures to be used in operation of the beer garden
are an existing 12 x 12 shed and several pop-up canopy tents.

. Applicant does not propose any lighting at this time given daytime operation.

. Pursuant to this Board’s decision in application #3567-CU, applicant was approved to
operate a brewery — Cousin’s Brewing - out of the basement of the existing mixed-use
building consisting of the restaurant/bar, brewery, retail, visitor’s center, and 4
apartments. The Cousin’s Brewing product is what applicant intents to sell for on-site
consumption in the beer garden. Minimal food service is also proposed. Food is
proposed to be prepared within the restaurant kitchen by a tenant catering service.

Pursuant to the decision in application #4137-CU, the Board approved the construction of
a pedestrian/bicycle bridge on a portion of the property over the Mill Brook within the
Flood Hazard Overlay District and FEMA floodway. Constituting part of the recreation
hub project, the bridge is to serve as access to existing trails on private land and the
nearby Howe Block of the Camel’s Hump State Forest.

Pursuant to the decision in application #4138-CU, the Board approved a request to
expand the parking on the property by creating an additional 18 spaces and to restore the
riparian buffer adjacent to the Mill Brook. The parking was increased to a total of 80
spaces to serve users of the recreation hub.

. Applicant submits that most customers will be users of the trailhead/recreation hub.
Accordingly, any impact to the prior-approved 80 parking spaces is likely minimal.



10. Applicant submits that there will be no amplified noise generated from operation of the
beer garden. There will be no noise after 9:00 p.m.

11. A public hearing will be held on Tuesday, March 12", 2024. Notice was sent to The
Valley Reporter on February 27", 2024, and it appeared in the February 29", 2024 issue
of The Valley Reporter. Abutting property owners were sent notice on February 27,
2024.



Town of Waitsfield Conditional Use Permit Application
Town of Waitsfield, 4144 Main Street, Waitsfield, Vermont 802-496-2218
(Please complete both front and back portions of this form and submit to the Zoning Administrator)

Owner/Applicant: ,(3 N /\} / }/i()/zﬂ\}j Telephone #’s: 7(9/3 7{7"_? ’gvz (%(/

(If not owner\llettel from owner authorizing agent status is required.)

Mailing Address: 9 VT /ZDU A y TSIl YT 0S6793
Location of Property: )/}/VH; A\) /@//ﬁ Parcel ID #: qq /6 N){)

Flood Hazard Zone? __\J( Area/Acreage of Lot: ¢ S

Proposed use, activity, construction, etc. (check applicable item):

[] Access approval (see 3.02) [] Adaptive re-use of historic barn (see 4.02)

[] Building height extension (see 3.06) [] Change to a non-conforming use (see 3.08.B)
[] Commercial water extraction (see 4.04) Jadk Expansion of existing conditional use

[[] Expansion of non-conforming structure (see 3.08.A) [] Extraction of earth resources (see 4.05)

[] Flood hazard area review (see FHA Overlay District) [] Home business (see 4.06.B)

[] Mixed Use (see 4.07) [] Mobile home park (see 4.08)

[] Non-residential parking in front yard (see 3.09.A) [[] Parking or loading waiver (see 3.09.C)

(] Public facility (see 4.10) [] Sign (see 3.11.G.) [[] Telecommunication facility (see 4.11)

[] Unspecified parking approval (see Table 3.1) [] Other

Please describe the proposed change: F AT - TImE y ﬁ:qfa/Jﬁ L FEL ﬁ' ALDEN ({ U hm 5)9

o Please attach one 11"x17" maximum site plan and all other documentation as may be required in Article V, Section 5.3.
Bring one set of 18"x 24" or larger site plans to the meeting.

o Please provide the names of adjacent property owners (use additional sheet if needed) and stamped addressed envelopes for
each.

HAoLgY puw Bewit [ysxinsic)

SHEN Praptiza] SErpictS.

STSTZILS don  BRSTRER < INIESTRENT

InEREY fpoparé s ic

InsE /263‘/ Profips LLE

Qivostic Lpngp [J2

6225&*(;24 /1794

(Please complete the next page of this form.)

Please note that this application does not automatically qualify you for a state permit.
/\ A Contact the Permit Specialist at 802-476-0195.

I represent that th? information in the application is true and that I am authorized to file this application.
Signature: / /i/\ Date: ij) | / 2 L/

t
Please print: l {ON/\J é: /A/)//Lﬂk )f

Office Use Only

Application Number: HI66- % Date Referred: 211?24

(from Zoning lication)

Zoning District: /J/ { Curb Cut Required: Jan)
Meeting date(s): 3 / 12 / LG

Decision:




Waitsfield Conditional Use Application Page 2 of 6

General Standards. According to Article V, Section 5.03 of the Waitsfield Zoning By-Law, the
Development Review Board (DRB) shall determine and rule that such proposed conditional use will not
adversely affect the following general standards. Please respond to each of the following:

A. The capacity of existing or planned community facilities:
s , S — . <
WE Do rr Kri)fVE Tar FrojecT AGFECTS AN STepicks 077
Facig TS s ON-Siaf Factiges Ane dinen HS ALY, Pealk,

B. The character of the area affected:
Tie. Aach 1S Reimr OPENED Con. Pugiic OSE, (WITH (PDning
Tne e, S0 LoE DoryT Bec)sVE T (i ncpn bofel CHINSE
EUBilks , WE AwTI CVPVTE OST Bu i £5S Faar TN HUE
A /—‘:77///’7‘7/,

C. Traffic on roads and highways in the vicinity:
T Feen (Faapen) wite KE hag Time Ann SEiTG0 2L
Coguszl o0 FTiwe Hug s, HIeN Jrncse Times Ao
SEATINS ( <) Témw) w)le o Kz Duriwg BEER GRrnzn/
SENLDULE = Lo pnmn woZdThEa. pmorTH S,

D. Any land use or land development regulations or ordinances of the town of Waitsfield then in effect:
/\/0/\)&; Wwig /<N i) OfF

E. Utilization of renewable energy resources.

JIOpE (I iy OE.

Note: Each zoning district and many of the proposed uses have specific standards that must be met
for a conditional use permit. Attach additional sheets as necessary.



Waitsfield Conditional Use Application Page 3 of 6

Specific Standards. In addition to the General Standards above, the DRB shall consider whether the
following standards are applicable to the application due to site conditions and/or the scale and intensity of
the proposed use. Please respond to the following as applicable; use additional sheets as necessarry:

1. Protection of natural resources (see Section 5.03.D.1.).
Yropsze fper 1< joo’ fdsry Cronn. N7 cdnpok, Lol) <N 1S T2
Orit Hoporcapte Resorct, A0 foying IMPACT THEIT 1oved REQUIRL
/T i,

2. Design and location of structures (see Section 5.03.D.2.).
Ese) ST 1220 SHED, AnD 320 peRgL. FoP-(IP Cpoanld Y T/Pe Tz sy

podir T ()/w_7/ SR TIAES. (ED.,

2.a. Village Residential and Village Business District standards (see Section 5.03.D.2.a.)
/‘\// A

2.b. Trasville Village District standards (see Section 5.03.D.2.b.)
)\

2.c. Agricpltural-Residential and Commercial Lodging District standards (see Section 5.03.D.2.c.)
ya%
P 4

2.d. Route 100 and scenic roads standards (see Section 5.03.D.24.) _
Brip fanven) LochTien) IS SET MRk 700 CEgT (Chom ,
/2T /DD/ Ao STREENE) ) EX)CTias [ n s CRpe A WO&LM&}A




Waitsfield Conditional Use Application Page 4 of 6

3. Traffic and pedestrian circulation (see Section 5.03.D.3.).

ot B LigvE TOS ths Aueeapy Gien) Awesiio v e loe Lum i

4. Parking, Transit & Service Areas (see Section 5.03.D.4.). ;
ot Bevjevd TUS Js /iz_ue/wy Beert Aooasizp Jno TOwe Jog fotmi—

5. Stormwater management (see Section 5.03.D.5.).

pes fetsgp T s deeent) Bezps Aposam i Ticwe Hod panrr

6. Lightir%pe Section 5.03.D.6.).
we W Lo Mrr AN PITE Awy Veep Fore LIENTING. fhse b on

Ho €< L SERVICIK

7. Landscaping and screening (see Section 5.03.D.7.).
Lok Brigve Comne T LapnseaPing-Ark) SEnLisNg AR
SOz C 1t T A T R0Posin Locirion

8. Water and wastewater systems (see Section 5.03.D.8.).

Ex)sTing S\STpm ottt JE TIL)ZED |

9.a. Performgnce standards: Fire and explosion (see Section 5.03.D.9.a.).

N IR
/




Waitsfield Conditional Use Application Page 5 of 6

9.b. Performance standards: Vibration (see Section 5.03.D.9.b.).
N

9.c. Performance standards: Noise (see Section 5.03.D.9.c.).

THERs il S pjo AmPricit D MOISZ |, Ard No MISE feizh, Um.

9.d. Performance standards: Odor (see Section 5.03.D.9.d.).
/\// A

9.e. Performance standards: Emissions and air pollution (see Section 5.03.D.9.¢.).
1/

9.f. Performance standards: Heat (see Section 5.03.D.9.f.).
P/

9.g. Performance standards: Direct glare (see Section 5.03.D.9.g.).
wi Lo o Avnc) e Tie peep or Ligymrac Do o Pspiniil
poun < e olEadTia

ra

9.h. Performance standards: Indirect glare (see Section 5.03.D.9.h.).
r /h




Waitsfield Conditional Use Application Page 6 of 6

9.i. Performance standards: Liquid and solid wastes (see Section 5.03.D.9.1).
WASTE. Fotom [huaip Ji=ue A SDLILS Fom Foon, (il

L Disposed € OSING Exe) STIAIG- [MEAN SRV CTURE
oo i NGE el BE JISPSED OF SING EX)STIMG INEA WSTRVCTURE

A0 /70/2«:/'0&«6 /5 (

10. Utilities (see Section 5.03.D.10.).
EXISTNMNE OTIL)THS bl L g UTIL) 2ED .

Additional Narrative or Background. You are invited to use the space below to provide additional
background, information, or other details about your proposal that is not provided elsewhere on your
Zoning Permit application form or this Conditional Use application form.
WE Ear)Sipno A Simmin , AETEepor) - E VEMPIC. , OFE2NTION, (/T
[ TN Foon P HEVEN WoTE /)//éﬂ)N&( 7 ATTRneT JHZ_TFp/e SE=Em
UIER S Anp HEHLIE T '@us v iﬂétam//’
Foun Oa /§ A v EEK MANI Iy i~ [ ANG ﬁzi//\« b [0k UpuNS 0F SERICE.
Reyx AETN A HIKE 00 RIps, frng i Yany Grang, a0 THE

/OM LAN i 72T A




TOWN OF WAITSFIELD, VERMONT APPLICATION FOR A ZONING PERMIT

4144 Main Street, Waitsfield, VT 05673 802-496-2218; Fax: 802-496-9284
Application #:..... q/ Gb .................... Date Received:..... 7 bhuva..... Fees: Zoning.........c.cocooevviininnnn.
Parcel #:... 7908 (4.0 oo Zoning District... L./ 2. ... DRB:...285. <o
Spetial ZOTINE ATCASE: « s s sumsns swas ¢ oo s s » £ swuas § SREE S LOUS £ £RLEE Sps s sovan NewsSpaper........covveeueenens

0 Approved (or 0 Denied) by ZA onl......ooovviviiiiiiiiiiiii Total.....s7%. D, vese s 5w v
e~Referred to DRB because. ... (AL, . G4 0DCS0hn i,

Meeting DAte(s). ... Gl .l oo,
DO SIOM e vomimcnn o nesis simsinivn S0 5 .85 SRR 405785 REGEH § 585 3 SR8 § V'S /G MIn EIRIOAT FHCEE SARS § WANBET ST LOIEHA T HOVISH SEONE § FRESAT 4 03
COTIIMIENE 1.0 4 v weviers v wotes cass s amaini casiais o siaemi o waiais o siomies o wiinis 3 eisis o ai00 & & B0 38 4L00bie o 00 e & wcmitis o Soomivis & 410004 £E485 8 0503 5 F0H0T & w0 oo

Owner. .. \b .. Mdﬁ?ﬂ;){ ............................................................. Phone. 602 ‘7(/13 ’642‘#/ ........

(If not owner, letter from owner authorizing agent status is required) ~E-mail. .CQQWAV._{/,‘?/.ZJ,? SN (VAo s SR
Mailing Address....: b—r/l—r A ./.Z.U:’UIK(/.-&E:’.‘?Q .................... T EASEMENSY. oo oo e eeeeeeeians
Location of Property (E-911 address).... 00 ,.ccooieeeeeieieiiiiiiiiiinns F100d PLain?......eeeeeeeerreeereeeeeeeeeeenn
Existing Use and Occupancy. Cammencn, k/,fzpf/ QLA T ... Wetlands?......... L everesrssssssssssnens
Name of Business (if applicable)...........oooiiviiiiiiiiniiiiiiin, Public Building?.<....cccovvervevervennnnnn.
Application is made to Site Plan Type of Construction:

O erect o one family dwelling ¥ Enclosed Foundation...........ccooevviiiininenn.
O repair 0 commercial/bus 0 On next page Exterior Walls.........ocovveiiinin.
o alter o light industrial (Show dimensions listed ROOFING, s s v s gems wawms o scens s wey
o extend O accessory building  below on the site plan) Estimated Cost of Construction:

O remove oindustrial
& change use O sign Roads: (some have restrictions)

O other o other oOPrivate oTown ¥ State

Description of proposed use and/or ®mScenic Route 100

structure. . .g/ﬁéﬁﬁm.()‘.ﬂ/}vﬂ EDL.. oNot Applicable

Lot Size/Acreage of Lot:..... T, f ............................. Frontage along Road..... L1000 ..o

(i.e., 100x200; 20,000 sq.ft.; 2 acre, etc.)

After construction of the proposed structure, what will the setback be on the . v
Front Side (from road centerline). .........ooeevvevunennn. Left Side............. /U g. a) ’\/5/)TL‘U67} o/ ﬁl@ﬂ D)Cﬁ D
Right S1d€:s s camnas s aemn s saman s wovews somass cswams mwsny s RO ottt

Nearest streambank/riverbank/pond..................... % grade/slope from development to bank..................

Existing Structuges/Use:

..Cmmmz.if.-.@.).n.eﬁ@fm.—.yxm.é...,...@1@.&.., ...... SHED..) LELL 0OV s, CHCKERL RO

Existing square footage.../s !f.’f?.(?....;.....g.'f.‘).i’...f ...... 144...p..... A2 ;2‘10 ........... Total:./ 430 ..

Height of tallest StrUCEULe:. ..ot veeerrerererseennes

Proposed use: (ie, garage, shed, barn, etc.) Square footage: (exclude attics < 7 %' high and below-grade basements):

............. )Z)Nlé.............Height:......; P OO wsaen e DS TLOOE i miins it DO sivvens L OB S 5 sisioses s a5
............ ]\'He1ght, 1*floor:............2" floor...............3" floor......... Total:............
.................................... Height:......; 1%floor:............2" floor................3" floor..........Total:............
Total proposed square footage: ~ ciiciiiiin ciieieieieeees ssesesiees ceseseeecaa
Building Coverage %.....oeeceieiiiieiiiiiieiiiiiiinieeeees (perimeter of floor space including porches, balconies, roof overhangs>30")
L0t COVEIALE U0 titittttaee et eiieieeeeseeannseieseens (all ground cover including driveways, walkways, etc.)

# Parking Spaces NAVE: weews s aowes s s sssmens s swss » vos 115 DO




TOWN OF WAITSFIELD, VERMONT APPLICATION FOR A ZONING PERMIT

Site Plan: The box below represents your property. Draw your existing buildings and proposed buildings here.
Identify all existing and proposed buildings and all front, back, and side measurements from all buildings. Please
provide a separate sketch showing the height of the building.




—TOWN OF WAITSFIELD, VERMONT APPLICATION FOR A ZONING PERMIT

THIS SECTION PERTAINS ONLY TO THOSE REQUESTS REQUIRING CONDITIONAL USE
REVIEW BY THE DEVELOPMENT REVIEW BOARD:

(Refer to Sections 5.2 and 5.3 of the Waitsfield Zoning Bylaws)

1. Application Requirements (5.2)

2, Conditional Use Review Criteria: Submit responses to each of the review criteria listed.

O Stamped addressed envelopes for all abutters (list below)

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ooooo

THIS SECTION PERTAINS TO THOSE REQUESTS FOR DIMENSIONAL VARIANCE AND
THEREFORE DEVELOPMENT REVIEW BOARD REVIEW:

(Refer to Section 6.5 of the Waitsfield Zoning Bylaws)

1. Submit narrative with application.

2. Stamped addressed envelopes for all abutters (list below) . 7
N RSN N o A Anctose Bdensd..........

TN PR 0T ST WICES ORI ML o

......

......

Other facts for the Development Review Board to consider:

No Certificate of Occupancy/Compliance shall be issued for any use and/or structure unless constructed and
completed in conformity with the representations contained in the application for the zoning permit.

The undersigned hereby applies for a Zoning Permit to be issued on the basis of the
representations contained here, and to the best of his/her knowledge believes them to be true.

PLEASE NOTE THAT THIS APPLICATION DOES NOT AUTOMATICALLY QUALIFY YOU
FOR A STATE PERMIT. CONTACT THE STATE PERMIT SPECIALIST AT (802) 476-0195.

)

Signature........ /... . ;/!. \/\/\ .................................................. Phone(s) 02 79)/7{02L/ // .Dates //f?r 2!
Please print you/r name legibly... \/0{/ n, 6: /”/) (7 )5 ..................................................................

If this request is to be reviewed by the Development Review Board, then
the completed application must be received 25 days in advance of the meeting.




yiieg ajboo

RTREEINE )

XCTT-T AN
fled papaun «» 5
Zaimesq A TN b 3,
- } W : . of 3 . ‘dew nok Joj uopduasap e allpA

| aumead 4 i F 8 i L T s = W e
pueBer ; : 5 -4 ‘ eatengn, L uspieqs lseg




Rec tlugm Hub
l. I e C,enter

o
o

~
,

\ Public

T0|Iets ‘@A
arkmg & e |
Rec Hub "9A

N Trail
. Crossing

‘_\ Mill Brook Bridge |

Seriously Sharp Way .\ oW
Trail (existing) ramp

P DS W T I S

-~ " 7 ‘ r;
“v Waitsfield, VT >t
A_.'_i e GERT T,



Recreatiol

o=

¥

Jop _— >
R Welcome Center

=

: — Public
Sy S
. Portalets

%

- » Rec Hub Trail

'L
.

2 1. % «' = - . :
..~ Riparian Buffer ¢
A e e

./ (green shading)

AT I T 7 T
o e e e i K - e < 1)

0.1% Occurrence
Flood Zone
(purple lines)

&
Z,

N

EAR, -
S
[ '\:.:;1 e

Waitsfie




Parking Lot Design

= Route 17 is the primary source of runoff flowing onto the Morris property and ultimately into the Mill Brook. The state is talking about
re-examining the intersection of routes 17 and 100. Any changes are at least several years in the future. For now, the VOREC project
management team and the property owner would like to reduce the impact of runoff on the watershed without investing a ton of
money since further work might be required when the intersection is finally changed.

= Summit Engineering of South Burlington

has been hired to create a plan to reduce Parking Layout
. . . g Sy 9 VT Rt. 17, Waitsfield, VT
sediment flow into the Mill Brook and add L, 9.27.22

additional parking spaces . They have
completed a 3D survey of the area, are
currently assessing the permeability of the
existing surfaces, and will produce a final
plan to include:

O excavation

o Addition of aggregate (stone, etc.)

o grading

o cleaning up the swale and installing
check dams

o parking perimeter landscaping to
capture sediment and define lot edge

. L \ Parking Phase | (Existing): Bl
o potential drain improvements for the pZ:k!.'Igphiii..‘(p",'ip'?é’ld); pink |

parking areas abutting route 17




Parking — Calculation of Needed Spots

* The building is currently used for a restaurant, bike shop, 4 apartments, and the Welcome Center for the Mad
River Valley Chamber of Commerce.

* The restaurant is closed, but a new restaurant in the former Local Folk Smokehouse space will be opening soon.

* The new proposed use is as a trailhead linking to existing trails on private land and the nearby Howe Block of the
Camel’s Hump State Forest.

* The Mad River Path is planning an extension of the Fiddler’s Walk path which will link directly to this site via a trail
crossing across route 100.

* New parking space are needed to accommodate the additional

use of the site as a trailhead.

Use Requirement Calculation Needed
Spots
Restaurant 1 space per 4 seats plus 1 space per 120 seats / 4 = 30 plus 10 employees = 40 40
employee for the largest shift

Bike Shop 1 space per 300 square feet 24 ftx 20 ft =480sq. ft. - 480/300=1.6 1.6
Apartments 1.5 spaces per dwelling 4 apartments x 1.5=6 6

MRV Welcome Center 1 space per 300 square feet 26 ftx 26 ft=676sq.ft. - 676/300=1.6 2.3
Trailhead Parking No defined rule Lareau Park lot has about 30 spaces 30

TOTAL

80




Parking — Calculat|on of EX|st|ng & New Parkmg Spaces

Perpendicular parking
spaces are 9 feet wide
x 18 feet long.

ADA accessible spaces
add a 5-foot-wide
buffer on both sides.

Parallel parking spaces
are 9 feet wide by 25
feet long.

Areas where
landscaping will be
improved and added
to shield views of
parking areas and
improve streetscape
aesthetics are shown
with yellow shaded
boxes.




Parking — Calculation of Existing & New Parking Spaces

* Parking spaces are 9 feet wide x 18 feet long. ADA accessible spaces add a 5-foot-wide buffer on both sides.

* John Morris, the property owner, plans to re-open a restaurant in the Smokehouse space in the near future.

Parking Space Location Map # | Dimensions Calculation of number of spaces Existing | Proposed
Spaces Spaces

Easternmost A 36 ft wide x 18 ft long 36’ /9" = 4 spaces 4

Between bike shop and 17 B 50 ft long x 18 ft wide (2x25) =50 2 parallel

In front of Welcome Ctr C 114 ft wide x 18 ft long (11 x9)+ (3 x5 buffer)=99 + 15 =114’ 11

Near dumpsters D 27 ft wide x 18 ft long 27’19 = 3 spaces 3

Northwest corner E 99 ft wide x 18 ft long 99’/ 9" =11 spaces 11

Middle tier F 120 ft long x 18 ft wide (4 x 25’) + 20’ extra space = 76 + 44 = 120’ | 4 parallel

Existing lower — north G 126 ft long x 18 ft wide 126’/ 9’ = 14 spaces 14

Existing lower — south H 117 ftlong x 18 ft wide 117’1 9’ = 13 spaces 13

Southwestern I 72 ft long x 18 ft wide 72’ | 9 = 8 spaces 8

Westernmost J 90 ft long x 18 ft wide 90’/ 9’ =10 spaces 10

TOTAL 62 18




Boulders to define the
parking lot edge and
protect the bank

Boulders to define the parking lot
edge and protect the vegetative
buffer next to the swale

Plantings to filter runoff
and protect the swale

Existing swale location
with culvert under road




landscaping

driveway

This shed roof will
be removed

This shed is no
longer there

Riparian buffer

Existing swale location
with culvert under road




WAITSFIELD DEVELOPMENT REVIEW BOARD
FINDINGS OF FACT AND NOTICE OF DECISION

A. GUIDING ORDINANCE and POLICY PROVISIONS

1. Town of Waitsfield Zoning Bylaws, as adopted March 2, 1971 and amended through May

17, 2010:

Table 2.03
Section 3.03
Section 4.07
Section 5.03
Section 7.01

oo op

frasville Village District (TV).
Conversion and Change of Use.
Mixed Uses.

Conditional Use Review.
Definitions (Light Industry).

2. Waitsfield Town Plan, as adopted on October 22, 2013.

B. MATERIALS SUBMITTED

1. On March 27, 2014, the applicant submitted a zoning permit application, a conditional
use application, fee, and sketch site plans (interior work in basement only).

2. Omn April 9, 2014, the applicant submitted a letter from Brad M. Ruderman & Associates,
Inc., stating that the existing septic capacity should be adequate for the increased use.

C. PROPOSED FINDINGS OF FACT

1. The property is a 1.8-acre lot identified as parcel #99169.000 and located at 9 VT Route
17 in the Irasville Village Zoning District. The property is approved as mixed use to
include retail, restaurant/bar, and 4 apartments,




Waitsfield Development Review Board
Notice of Decision for Application #3567-CU Page 2

2.

(8]

-

10.

11.
12.

The applicant submitted application materials on March 27, 2014 and a letter from a
licensed engineer on April 9, 2014.

The proposal 1s to amend the conditional mixed use to add light industry, a small batch
brewery. The applicant proposes to convert a 24° x 24” area in the existing basement to a
brewery to serve the on-site restaurant and make off-site wholesales. There would only
be enough capacity to produce 16 kegs or fewer per week. The applicant is only
proposing to produce kegs on-site, and will bottle the beer at another facility.

The applicant plans to have waste (spent grains) picked up twice per week.

No exterior changes to the existing structure or site plan are proposed.

No increase in traffic is expected. There would be 2 additional employees so existing
parking space will be adequate. The existing rear door serves as access to the basement.
Per a letter from a licensed engineer dated April 7, 2014, the existing septic system
capacity has been found to be adequate for this increased use. However, the brewery will
likely produce industrial wastewater which requires a state discharge permit and/or an
indirect discharge permit.

There will be a ceiling-mounted fuse for fire protection. The electrician and plumber will
wire it to meet Fire Code.

The applicant has received his federal permit and will apply to the state for his brewery
and distributor permit.

On March 28, 2014, the PZA sent the public notice for the April 22, 2014 hearing on this
application to The Valley Reporter for inclusion in its April 3, 2014 issue, and mailed it to
the applicant and the abutting property owners.

The public hearing on this application was held on Tuesday, April 22, 2014.

The applicant presented his proposal to the board. No other people attended the hearing
on this application.

D. CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

Based on its review of the application materials, submltted site plans, presented testimony, and
Findings of Fact above, the Waitsfield Development Review Board hereby concludes this
application as proposed, and when finalized and implemented in accordance with the Conditions
of Approval listed below, does meet the conditional use criteria of the Town of Waitsfield
Zoning Bylaws and is in conformance with the Waitsfield Town Plan.

E. DECISION

Application #3567-CU is hereby APPROVED, subject to the following conditions:

1.
2.

The applicant shall not bottle on-site without obtaining prior approval(s).

Prior to issuance of any zoning permit, the applicant shall submit a Project Review Sheet
to the state permit specialist and shall obtain any applicable state and/or federal permit
approvals.




Waitsfield Development Review Board
Notice of Decision for Application #3567-CU _ Page 3

3. Any further changes to the approved mixed use, site plan, or structure shall receive prior
conditional use and/or administrative approval as required by the Waitsfield Zoning
Bylaws. '

4. At all times, the applicant shall comply with the Waitsfield Zoning Bylaws and, notably,
the performance standards as described in Section 5.03(D){(9).

Dated at Waitsfield, Vermont this;g&day of \/]4007 , 2014 for the Town of

Waitsfield Development Review Board by:

Brian Shupe, Development Review Board Vice Chair

Voting in the Affirmative: John Donaldson, Gib Geiger, Chris Jernigan, Rudy Polwin, and Brian
Shupe.

Abstaining: None.

Voting in the Negative: None.

Absent: Chris Cook, and Mike Kingsbury.

Appeal
Pursuant to Title 24 VSA §4471 and §4472, an interested person who has participated in

the review of this application may appeal this decision to the Vermont Environmental
Court by filing a Notice of Appeal directly to the Environmental Court, 255 North Main
Street, Barre, VT 05641, by certified mail within thirty (30) days of the date this decision is
issued. A copy of the notice must also be sent to the Zoning Administrator or the
Municipal Clerk who is required to provide a list of interested persons to the appellant
within five days of receipt of the Notice. The appellant is required to send a copy of the
Notice, via certified mail, to each interested person.




DEVELOPMENT REVIEW BOARD

FINDINGS OF FACT AND NOTICE OF DECISION

A. GUIDING ORDINANCE and POLICY PROVISIONS

1. Town of Waitsfield Zoning Bylaws, as adopted March 2, 1971 and amended through
September 28, 2020:

Table 2.03 [rasville Village District

Table 3.07 Agricultural-Residential District
Section 3.12 Surface Water Protection Standards
Section 5.03 Conditional Use Review

Ao o

2. Waitsfield Town Plan, as adopted on December 18, 2017.

B. MATERIALS SUBMITTED

1. On July 6, 2022, the applicant submitted conditional use permit application #4137-CU,
zoning permit application #4137, responses to General and Specific Review Standards, a
bridge site plan, and a package of materials and plans titled “MRV Rec Hub: Visitor’s
Center & Trailhead Overview.”

C. FINDINGS OF FACT

1. A public hearing was held on Tuesday, August 22, 2023.



10.

Notice was sent to The Valley Reporter on July 27, 2023, and it appeared in the August 3,
2023 issue of The Valley Reporter. Abutting property owners were sent notice on July
27, 2023.

The project concerns two properties: one is located at 5512 Main Street, and its principal
use is as a nursery. That parcel is identified as #99168.100 in the Irasville Village
District. The second property is located at 459 Dana Hill Road and its principal use is as
single-family dwelling. That parcel is identified as 29003.500 in the Agricultural-
Residential District

In what is described as a portion of Phase 2 of the Mad River Valley Recreation Hub
project, applicants Bob Kogut/Mad River Riders seek approval to construct a
pedestrian/bicycle bridge over the Mill Brook. The proposed bridge will serve the new
proposed use at 9 VT Route 17 as a trailhead linking to existing trails on private land and
the nearby Howe Block of the Camel’s Hump State Forest.

The bridge is proposed to be a steel bowstring truss bridge with steel railings and decking
consisting of 2 x 6 pressure-treated wood. As proposed, the bridge is to be 87 feet long
and 4 feet wide.

The bridge is proposed to slope upward from north to south due to the higher southern
bank elevation. Slope is as a 1:12 pitch and is ADA compliant for wheelchair access.

The proposed location of the bridge over the Mill Brook is within the FEMA floodway
and the Flood Hazard Area Overlay District (FHO).

Pursuant to Table 2.10 (C) (13), a bridge — in association with recreational trail use - is a
conditional use in the Flood Hazard Overlay and is subject to State and conditional use
review. All development within the FHO is subject to the provisions of Section 5.03 (E)
for Flood Hazard Area Development Standards.

Pursuant to Section 5.03 (E) (5), development within the floodway is prohibited “unless a
registered professional engineer certifies, based on hydrologic and hydraulic analyses
conducted in accordance with standard engineering practices, that the proposed
development will (i) not result in any increase (0.00 feet) in flood levels during the
occurrence of the base flood, and (ii) will not increase the risk to surrounding properties,
facilities or structures from flooding or erosion.” This is commonly-referred to a “no-
rise” analysis.

Applicant has submitted the no-rise analysis as conducted by Rebecca Diehl, a river
monitoring expert and fluvial geomorphologist. Her analysis was reviewed and approved



11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

by Scott Silverstein who is a state-registered and licensed engineer. Those plans have
been certified and stamped per Section 5.03 (E). The analysis shows that the bridge will
cause no measurable rise in floodwater levels during a base flood.

Also pursuant to Section 5.03 (E) (8), “structures within Special Flood Hazard Areas
shall be (a) designed, operated, maintained, or modified and adequately anchored to
prevent flotation, collapse, release or lateral movement of the structure during the
occurrence of the base flood.”

Per the plans submitted, applicant proposes that the southside foundation be anchored to
bedrock with bolts. The northside will use helical screw piles installed to a minimum
depth of 11 feet which is a minimum of 6 feet below the bottom of the stream channel.
The northside landing and ramp will be supported by steel posts stiffened with cross-
bracing between post pairs.

Applicant has also requested approval to restore the riparian buffer along the Mill Brook
adjacent to the parking area. The target restoration area stretches along 800 feet of the
Mill Brook frontage and covers approximately 0.7-acres. Applicant submits that after
bridge installation, trees will be replanted to reconstitute and expand the riparian buffer.
The intent is to have the ramp entirely situated among the vegetation.

State Wetlands Ecologist Shannon Morrison has visited the site and reviewed the project
plans. A State wetland permit is not needed.

Gretchen Alexander, Regional River Scientist, and Ned Swanberg, Regional Floodplain
Manager, both visited the site and reviewed the project plans. Neither Ms. Alexander nor
Mr. Swanberg had concerns with the bridge siting. In a follow up with the PZA, Mr.
Swanberg noted he was satisfied that the project met the requisite standards. Per his
email, “the critical element was the north side bridge abutment and ramp within the
floodway. Ihave seen an H & H analysis confirming no rise in the BFE.”

Per Susan Baird of the Natural Resources Board, no Act 250 permit is required.

The Department of Environmental Conservation has confirmed that a stormwater permit
is not necessary for the bridge installation area.

Jaron Borg, River Management Engineer with the ANR Watershed Management
Division, reviewed both the bridge plan and no-rise analysis. A final stream alteration
permit — SA3178 — has been issued.



19. There will be two-way pedestrian and bicycle traffic on the bridge, although not frequent.
Applicant submits that space (or a “bubble”) can be reserved on the ramp side of the
bridge to allow for adequate safety measures in case of two-way traffic.

20. Trail crossing signs will be utilized for users to cross Route 100/Main Street, including
adjacent to the access to 5512 Main Street.

D. CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

Based on its review of the application materials, submitted site plans, presented testimony, and
Findings of Fact above, the Waitsfield Development Review Board hereby concludes this
application as proposed, and when finalized and implemented in accordance with the Conditions
of Approval listed below, does meet the criteria of the Town of Waitsfield Zoning Bylaws and is
in conformance with the Waitsfield Town Plan.

E. DECISION

Application #4137-CU is hereby APPROVED, subject to the following conditions:

1. This decision is subject to any and all applicable local, State, and Federal permit
approvals.

2. Any modifications to the project as approved shall be submitted to the PZA and Regional
Floodplain Manager for review. Depending on any proposed modifications, additional
review from this Board may be required.

3. A copy of the No-Rise Certificate shall be submitted for the file.

4. At the completion of construction, the applicant shall provide as-built photographs of the

project for the file, per Section 6.01 (B) (4) of the Zoning Bylaws in accord with 24
V.S.A. §4424.

Dated at Waitsfield, Vermont this I;; of AD 2023 for the Town of Waitsfield

Develoime% bz

Do aldson, Development Review Board Chair

Votmg in the Affirmative: John Donaldson, Duncan Brines, Jonathan Ursprung, Steve
McKenzie, and Jim Tabor

Abstaining: none

Voting in the Negative: none

Absent: Rudy Polwin, Gib Geiger



Appeal

Pursuant to Title 24 VSA §4471 and §4472, an interested person who has participated in
the review of this application may appeal this decision to the Environmental Division of the
Vermont Superior Court by filing a Notice of Appeal directly to the Court, 32 Cherry
Street, Suite 303, Burlington, Vermont 05401, by certified mail within thirty (30) days of
the date this decision is issued. A copy of the notice must also be sent to the Zoning
Administrator or the Municipal Clerk who is required to provide a list of interested
persons to the appellant within five days of receipt of the Notice. The appellant is required
to send a copy of the Notice, via certified mail, to each interested person.



DEVELOPMENT REVIEW BOARD

FINDINGS OF FACT AND NOTICE OF DECISION

A. GUIDING ORDINANCE and POLICY PROVISIONS

1. Town of Waitsfield Zoning Bylaws, as adopted March 2, 1971 and amended through
September 28, 2020:

a.
b.
c
d

Table 2.03

Section 3.09
Section 3.12
Section 5.03

Irasville Village District

Parking & Loading Standards
Surface Water Protection Standards
Conditional Use Review

2. Waitsfield Town Plan, as adopted on December 18, 2017.

B. MATERIALS SUBMITTED

1. On July 6, 2022, the applicant submitted conditional use permit application #4138-CU,
zoning permit application #4138, responses to General and Specific Review Standards,
and a package of materials and plans titled “MRV Rec Hub: Visitor’s Center & Trailhead
Overview.”

C. PROPOSED FINDINGS OF FACT

1. A public hearing was held on Tuesday, August 22, 2023.



2. Notice was sent to The Valley Reporter on July 27, 2023, and it appeared in the August 3,
2023 issue of The Valley Reporter. Abutting property owners were sent notice on July
27,2023.

3. The property is located at 9 VT Route 17, and is a mixed-use property which consists of a
restaurant/bar, brewery, retail, visitor’s center, and 4 apartments. The parcel is identified
as #99169.000 in the Irasville Village District.

4, In what is described as a portion of Phase 2 of the Mad River Valley Recreation Hub
project, applicant Bob Kogut/Mad River Riders seek to expand the existing parking on
the property to accommodate users of the recreation hub and to restore the riparian buffer
along the Mill Brook. The new proposed use is as a trailhead linking to existing trails on
private land and the nearby Howe Block of the Camel’s Hump State Forest. The Mad
River Path is planning an extension of its Fiddler’s Walk path which is proposed to link
directly to the subject site via a trail crossing Route 100/Main Street.

5. Pursuant to Table 2.03 (C) (27), parking facilities are a conditional use in the Irasville
Village District. There are approximately 62 existing spaces on the property. Applicant
is requesting to an additional 18 spaces to accommodate the new trailhead project in
addition to the existing mixed uses on site.

6. Per Table 3.1, a restaurant requires 1 parking space for every 4 seats, and one space per
employee at the largest shift. Although currently closed there are plans to reopen, and the
restaurant had 120 seats and up to 10 employees at a time. Accordingly, 40 parking stalls
are required for the restaurant use.

7. Per Table 3.1, a retail establishment requires 1 parking space per 300 sq. ft. of gross floor
area. The retail bike shop that shares a portion of the building is approximately 480 sq.
ft. Accordingly, 1.6 spaces are required for the retail use.

8. Per Table 3.1, multi-family dwellings require 1.5 parking spaces per unit. There are 4
apartments within the building. Accordingly, 6 parking spaces are required for the
apartments.

9. Per Table 3.1, the welcome/visitor center office requires 1 parking space per every 300
sq. ft. of gross floor area. The size of the portion of the building for use as the welcome
center is 676 sq. ft. Accordingly, 2.3 parking spaces would be required for the
welcome/visitor center use.

10. Accordingly, a total of 50 parking spaces is required for the current mix of uses of the
property.



11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

Applicant submits that the current parking layout for the property accommodates 62 total
parking spaces. This total is predicated upon a 9’ x 18’ dimension for perpendicular
parking and a 9° x 25’ dimension for parallel parking — both in accord with Section 3.09
(A) (2). There are two ADA-accessible parking spaces in the front of the building.

There are no defined parking requirements in the Zoning Bylaws for a trailhead.
Applicant offers that Lareau Park has 30 parking spaces for visitors and has therefore
submitted that number for trailhead use at the subject property.

The Board accepts 30 spaces as adequate for trailhead parking. Therefore, a total of 80
spaces would be needed to accommodate the new mix of uses on the property.

Applicant’s plan identifies an additional 18 spaces for a total of 80 parking spaces.

Per the plans as submitted, applicant proposes use of boulders to define the edges of the
parking rows and also to protect the banks.

Per applicant’s submittal, a State Stormwater permit may be required for the parking
improvements.

Applicant also requests approval to restore the riparian buffer along the Mill Brook
adjacent to the parking area. The riparian buffer along the Mill Brook is thinly forested
and offers little protection against sediment flow.

Per Section 3.12 (A) of the Bylaws, “to prevent soil erosion, protect wildlife habitat and
maintain water quality, a naturally vegetated buffer strip shall be maintained from the
banks of streams and rivers, and the shores of ponds formed by in-stream impoundments
in streams and rivers.”

Pursuant to Section 3.12 (B), “no development, excavation, landfill, or grading shall
occur within the buffer strip, and vegetation shall be left in an undisturbed state, with the
exception of minimal clearing and associated site development necessary to
accommodate ... (2) Streambank stabilization and restoration projects, in accordance
with all applicable State and Federal regulations.”

Route 17 is the primary source of runoff flowing onto the subject property and ultimately
into the Mill Brook. Applicant has engineered a plan to reduce sediment flow into the
Mill Brook while improving the parking area. The final plan calls for excavation,
addition of aggregate, grading, cleaning up the existing swale and installing check dams,
landscaping around the parking perimeter to capture sediment, and drain improvements
for the parking areas abutting Route 17. Applicant proposes to identify and remove non-



native nuisance species and the expansion of the wooded buffer to between 35 — 50 feet.
Per the submittal, native trees and woody shrubs will be selected to reflect local site
conditions and planted at a ratio of 400 stems per acre. Invasive plant removal, site
preparation, and planting will be led by the Friends of the Mad River staff.

21. The target restoration area stretches along 800 feet of the Mill Brook frontage and covers
approximately 0.7-acres.

22. Per applicant’s submittal, a State Stormwater permit may be needed for the parking area
work.

D. CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

Based on its review of the application materials, submitted site plans, presented testimony, and
Findings of Fact above, the Waitsfield Development Review Board hereby concludes this
application as proposed, and when finalized and implemented in accordance with the Conditions
of Approval listed below, does meet the criteria of the Town of Waitsfield Zoning Bylaws and is
in conformance with the Waitsfield Town Plan.

E. DECISION

Application #4138-CU is hereby APPROVED, subject to the following conditions:

1. This decision is subject to any and all applicable local, State, and Federal permit
approvals.

2. Should safety concerns arise from parking or traffic issues, formal review and approval
by the Board of a parking and/or traffic plan may be required.

3. Should a State Stormwater permit be required for the parking area, the resultant
stormwater management plan, prepared by a licensed engineer, shall be submitted to the
PZA for inclusion in the file.

241 NIGEST

Dated at Waitsfield, Vermont this™ day of , 2023 for the Town of Waitsfield

Developmej:zv Boaid by:

John I@ﬁaldson, Development Review Board Chair

Voting in the Affirmative: John Donaldson, Duncan Brines, Jonathan Ursprung, Steve
McKenzie, and Jim Tabor

Abstaining: none

Voting in the Negative: none

Absent: Rudy Polwin, Gib Geiger



Appeal

Pursuant to Title 24 VSA §4471 and §4472, an interested person who has participated in
the review of this application may appeal this decision to the Environmental Division of the
Vermont Superior Court by filing a Notice of Appeal directly to the Court, 32 Cherry
Street, Suite 303, Burlington, Vermont 05401, by certified mail within thirty (30) days of
the date this decision is issued. A copy of the notice must also be sent to the Zoning
Administrator or the Municipal Clerk who is required to provide a list of interested
persons to the appellant within five days of receipt of the Notice. The appellant is required
to send a copy of the Notice, via certified mail, to each interested person.



Town of Waitsfield
DEVELOPMENT REVIEW BOARD
DRAFT Meeting Minutes
February 27, 2024

1. CALL TO ORDER: The meeting was called to order at 7:00 pm, and was held in person at the
Waitsfield Town Offices and online via Zoom.

DRB Members Present: Duncan Brines, John Donaldson (Chair), Rudy Polwin, Jonathan
Ursprung

Staff: Zoning Administrator JB Weir

Others: David Cohen, Stephen Gavosto

2. REVISIONS TO AGENDA, IF ANY
No changes were made to the agenda.

3. PUBLIC FORUM
Nobody requested time to address the Board.

4. Application #4165-CU by MRV Holdings off 6971 Main Street, Waitsfield VT. Pursuant to
Table 2.05 (C) (15), applicant requests conditional use approval to construct two storage units
(1,800 sq. ft. and 4,800 sq. ft.) on a mixed-use property consisting of residential and commercial
office space. The parcel is parcel is identified as #99204.000 in the Limited Business District.

Mr. Gavosto summarized the plans for the self-storage units, noting that he has revised his
design since submitting the application and now plans to use wooden materials to frame and
side the buildings.

Parking was discussed, and the following points made:
e Currently the site has 21 parking spaces
e Three apartments are located at the site, each one requiring one parking space
e Table 3.1 includes the Town’s parking standards
o Those standards outline office space needs based upon square footage of the
building
o Mr. Gavosto noted that the building contains hallways, utility rooms, and shared
space such as a conference room
o It was agreed that a report of the number of tenants would be useful to
determine the parking needed for the office space
e There are 10 spaces proposed for the new structures
o Mr. Gavosto noted that it would not be difficult to add a few more there
o Mr. Polwin indicated that unneeded impervious space should not be created
e There is currently an overflow parking area, which can be designated on the site plan

Mr. Donaldson explained that the Board will decide during deliberations what additional
parking may be required, once the needs of the office space area are better understood.

In response to questions from Board members, Mr. Gavosto noted that electricity will be
provided through solar panels and that he will determine the color temperature of the exterior
lights to be installed and provide that information to Mr. Weir.

Waitsfield DRB Minutes Page 1
February 13, 2024



Tree clearing limits were discussed. Mr. Gavosto explained that the proposed location requires
less tree cutting than would be necessary if the buildings were to be tucked behind an existing
structure, and noted as well that the property is wetter behind the proposed location, making it
difficult to move the buildings back further from the road. It was discussed that a landscaping
plan might include maintaining the existing thicket and other trees rather than stipulating that a
new landscape plan be developed.

Mr. Cohen was designated as an interested party to this application. He commented that he
wants to ensure that the character of the property will not change due to the new
development, and expressed that he was pleased the design had been revised to be wooden
rather than metal structures.

MOTION: Mr. Brines moved to close the hearing for Application #4165-CU. The motion was
seconded by Mr. Ursprung. All voted in favor.

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
The minutes of February 13, 2024 were amended and approved.

6. OTHER BUSINESS
The upcoming schedule was reviewed.

7. ADJOURNMENT
The public portion of the meeting was adjourned at 7:26 pm to move into deliberations.

8. DELIBERATIONS

Respectfully submitted,
Carol Chamberlin, Recording Secretary

Waitsfield DRB Minutes Page 2
February 13, 2024



	1. drb_agenda_2024-3-12
	2. Final Meeting packet for John Morris beer garden
	1. Staff Report for John Morris beer garden
	2. Application and aerial photo
	3. Vorec site and parking plans
	4. Mill-Brook-Bridge-and-Parking-rev-Jul-3-2023 3
	4. Mill-Brook-Bridge-and-Parking-rev-Jul-3-2023 4
	4. Mill-Brook-Bridge-and-Parking-rev-Jul-3-2023 18
	4. Mill-Brook-Bridge-and-Parking-rev-Jul-3-2023 19
	4. Mill-Brook-Bridge-and-Parking-rev-Jul-3-2023 20
	4. Mill-Brook-Bridge-and-Parking-rev-Jul-3-2023 21
	4. Mill-Brook-Bridge-and-Parking-rev-Jul-3-2023 22
	4. Mill-Brook-Bridge-and-Parking-rev-Jul-3-2023 23

	4. Local Folk Light Industry #3567-CU PDF
	5. VOREC bridge decision
	6. VOREC parkiing decision

	3. DRB-min-02-27-24-draft

